
 

 
9 January 2012 Agenda 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

 
AGENDA 

Henderson City Council Regular Meeting 
Monday, 9 January 2012, 6:00 p.m. 

R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building 
134 Rose Avenue 

Henderson, North Carolina 
     

Mayor and City Council Members 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding 
 
Councilmember James C. Kearney, Jr.  
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey 
Councilmember Michael C. Inscoe 
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey 

 
Councilmember Brenda G. Peace—Jenkins  
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke 
Councilmember Lonnie Davis, Jr. 
Councilmember George M. Daye 

 
City Officials 
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV. OPENING REMARKS 
 

In order to provide for the highest standards of ethical behavior and Transparency in Governance 
as well as provide for good and open government, the City Council has approved Core Values 
regarding Ethical Behavior1 and Transparency in Governance2.  The Mayor now inquires as to 
whether any Council Member knows of any conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict, with 
respect to matters before the City Council.  If any Council Members knows of a conflict of 
interest, or appearance of conflict, please state so at this time. 
 
 

                                                 
1 Core Value 4:  Ethical Behavior:  We value the public trust and will perform our duties and 
responsibilities with the highest levels of integrity, honesty, trustworthiness and professionalism. 
 
2 Core Value 10:  Transparency in Governance:  We value transparency in the governance and 
operations of the City. 
 



 

 
9 January 2012 Agenda 

Page 2 of 3 
 

V. ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
a) 12 December 2011 Regular Meeting [See Notebook Tab 1] 

 
VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on Agenda items only at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the 
Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  
The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the 
podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident, and identify the Agenda Item 
about which you wish to speak on the sign up sheet.  Please review the Citizen Comment 
Guidelines that are provided on the last page of this Agenda.3  
 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a) Consideration of Ordinance 12-02, FY12 Budget Amendment #29, Authorizing Funds for 
Engineering Design for 2” Water Main Replacement Project with State Revolving Fund. 
(CAF 12-04)[See Notebook Tab 2] 
   
 Ordinance 12-02  

 
b) Consideration of Ordinance 12-03, Amending a Portion of Chapter 29 Relating to Parks and 

Recreations Requiring Posting of Recreation Facilities before Prohibiting Weapons.  
  (CAF 12-06) [See Notebook Tab 3] 
 

 Ordinance 12-03  
 
  c) Consideration of Ordinance 12-04, FY12 Budget Amendment #30 for the Reimbursement of 

Funds Through Insurance Proceeds as a Result of Water Main Damage and Repair at 
Andrews Avenue and US #1 Bypass.  (CAF 12-07)[See Notebook Tab 4] 

 
 Ordinance 12-04  

 
  d) Consideration of Ordinance 12-05, FY12 Budget Amendment #31, Authorizing Transfer of 

Funds for Professional Services for Water Sales Agreement. (CAF 12-08)[See Notebook Tab 
5] 

 
 Ordinance 12-05 

 
IX. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda have either been previously discussed by City 
Council during a previous meeting and/or are considered in the ordinary course of business by 
the City Council and will be enacted-on by one motion and a roll call vote in the form listed.  If 
discussion is desired by either the Council or the Audience, the item in question will be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately after the revised consent agenda has been 
approved.  



 

 
9 January 2012 Agenda 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
a) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-01, Supporting Urban Progress Zone 

Designation. (CAF 12-01)[See Notebook Tab 6] 
 

 Resolution 12-01 
 

b) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-01, Amending City Code Section 12-1, 
Providing for Appeal Rights Regarding the Fire Prevention Code.  (CAF 12-02) [See 
Notebook Tab 7] 
 
 Ordinance 12-01 
 

c) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-02, Adopting the KLRWS 2007 Local Water 
Supply Plan.  (CAF 12-03)  [See Notebook Tab 8] 
 
 Resolution 12-02 

 
X. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on non-Agenda items only at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the 
Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  
The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the 
podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident.  Please review the Citizen Comment 
Guidelines that are provided on the last page of this Agenda.3 
 

XII.   REPORTS 
a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem 
b) City Manager  
c) City Attorney 
d) City Clerk 

i. Calendar Notes and Schedule Update [See Notebook Tab 9] 
ii. Various Departmental Reports [See Notebook Tab 10] 

a) Henderson-Vance County 911 
 

XIII.     ADJOURNMENT 
 

                                                 
3 Citizen Comment Guidelines 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters of concern 
to them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to three 
minutes should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the public 
hearing comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, if in order, 
be scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are to be 
directed to the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the public 
comment section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 
 



Minutes Book 42 
9 December 2011 Special Called Meeting Minutes  

Page 1 of 3 

City Council Minutes 
Special Called Meeting  

9 December 2011 

 
 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members, James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, Garry Daeke, Brenda G. Peace-Jenkins D. Michael Rainey, and 
George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
Council Members Lonnie Davis, Jr.,  
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Attorney John Zollicoffer, City Clerk Esther McCrackin, 
Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier and Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Director Tom 
Spain. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 9 December 2011 Special Called Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order 
by Mayor James D. O’Geary at 12:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, 
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary that a quorum was present.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Awarding Contract with McGill Associates Relative to Engineering Services Needed in 
Conjunction with Improvements at the Henderson Water Reclamation Facility; and 
Ordinance 11—62, FY12 Budget Amendment #25, An Amendment to the CIP Sewer Fund 
Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Improvements Project. (Reference:  CAF 11—D—
134;  Resolution 11—111) 
  
City Manager Ray Griffin stated this work session was set to continue discussion regarding the 
improvements at the Water Reclamation Facility.  He then asked Assistant City Manager Frank 
Frazier to present updated information. 
 



Minutes Book 42 
9 December 2011 Special Called Meeting Minutes  

Page 2 of 3 

Mr. Frazier introduced Andy Lovingood and Denny Martin from McGill Associates and also 
mentioned that the Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Director Tom Spain was in 
attendance, all of whom were in attendance to any questions that might arise. 
 
(Clerk’s Note:  Council Members Daye and Peace-Jenkins arrived at 12:04 p.m.) 
 
Mr. Frazier touched on several changes, including two contingency amounts: $75,000 in general 
costs and $40,000 for design changes after the design is deemed complete.  Mr. Frazier then 
reviewed changes to several line items, stating $300,000 was added for the portions of the plant 
which need to be demolished.  At this point, he asked Council if they had any questions.  There 
were no questions. 
 
Mr. Denny Martin, McGill Associates, next addressed Council by reviewing the Proposed Rate 
Increases for the improvements (See last page of Ordinance 11-62).  He reviewed the Options 1 
and 2, and said the information has been updated since the March 2011 figures and said these 
updated figures currently benefit the City.  Again, Council was asked if they had any questions.  
There were not questions. 
 
City Manager Griffin then reviewed Budget Amendment # 25 (see Ordinance 11-62).  He said 
the figures incorporated the full scope of the project. 
 
Mr. Griffin then asked if there were questions regarding awarding the contract to McGill 
Associates. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked about the costs related to the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
(DBE) contractors.  Mr. Lovingood said advertising costs and paperwork compile the majority of 
the cost. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if after the facility is completed if the City could be assured of a 
state-of-the-art, generic facility.  Mr. Lovingood said the facility would definitely be state-of-the-
art and future ready.  It will also be less complicated and more automated to run on a daily basis. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked about training on the new equipment.  Mr. Lovingood stated yes, 
training would be provided, along with manuals. 
 
Council Member Rainey asked if the new plant would affect the number of people in the 
department.  Mr. Lovingood stated during the construction no City staff would be involved.  
McGill and the contractors are responsible.  The new plant will come with a one year warrantee 
which should provide significant saving over the costs of running the current facility. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if the City wanted to expand the facility by 50% is there enough 
land/area available.  Mr. Lovingood said yes.  Because of the permits already in place,  requests 
for additional permits/changes should be fairly easy to obtain. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked if McGill was given the go-ahead immediately, can they 
guarantee the timeline will be met.  Mr. Lovingood said yes.  He said they are prepared to have 
surveyors on-site within the next seven (7) days.  



Minutes Book 42 
9 December 2011 Special Called Meeting Minutes  

Page 3 of 3 

Council Member Coffey inquired about the order of the design phase.  Mr. Lovingood responded 
some items will run parallel and a lot of coordination is required but there is a specific order to 
be followed. 
 
Ms. Coffey also asked whether the contingency dollars would be based per hour.  Mr. Lovingood 
said the expectation is to complete the project in less than 24 months.  If contingency dollars are 
used it would be on an hourly basis. 
 
City Attorney Zollicoffer asked if any problems were anticipated with building on the same land 
as the existing facility.  Mr. Lovingood said no.  He felt the requirements could be met without 
any major snags as most of the construction would be behind the existing facility.  Attorney 
Zollicoffer then asked if there would be any change in the facility’s rating.  Mr. Lovingood said 
no. 
 
Council Member Inscoe noted the new facility should significantly reduce operating costs.  Mr. 
Griffin stated the reduction in costs should provide relief to the overall debt service. 
 
Council Member Kearney inquired about the overall savings.  Mr. Martin, McGill Associates, 
stated conservatively about 25%. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked about the change over from the old to new system.  Mr. 
Lovingood said it is done regularly and is not normally difficult but it certainly had to be a 
coordinated effort. 
 
Mr. Griffin advised this matter would be on the 12 December 2011 meeting agenda for action.  
He thanked members of Council for attending this Special Called Meeting. 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any further questions.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Daeke moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Peace-
Jenkins and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 12:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
 
      ATTEST: 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin 
      City Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

3 January 2012 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12—04 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-02, FY 12 Budget Amendment #29, 
Authorizing Funds for Engineering Design for 2” Water Main Replacement Project 
with State Revolving Fund; 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 5: Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 

System. 
 

 KSO 8:   Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to 
Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities.  

 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 12-02, FY 12 Budget Amendment #29, Authorizing Funds for 

Engineering Design for 2” Water Main Replacement Project with State Revolving Fund. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The City of Henderson applied to the NC Department of Environment and Natural Resources 
(DENR) concerning a grant/loan available for all water systems in North Carolina to obtain 
funds to help with maintenance, expansions, and replacements of parts, lines, and equipment for 
local water system.  This was approved by City Council in Resolution 11-88 (see attached).  In 
response to our application, DENR returned a letter, dated 1 December 2011, reminding the City 
that work needs to progress during the loan consideration process.  Based on the letter, the water 
main replacement portion of the project needs to be completed first with plans and specifications 
for the project submitted by 29 February 2012.  Survey work is necessary in order to proceed 
with the design elements for the water main replacement project.  The City will be notified of the 
actual grant/loan approval sometime after 31 May 2012. 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

           
 
 
 
Agenda Item:         ___________ 
 
Council Meeting:  09 Jan 2012 Regular Meeting 



 

If the grant/loan is approved, the City would receive $1,726,000 for the project 
 
The water main design is proposed to be handled in house with City staff, however, surveying of 
the existing project areas cannot be done in house and must be contracted with a private firm.  
The project cost is estimated as follows: 
 

1. Survey for 13,000 LF of Water Main Replacement:   $32,000 
2. Permit Fees:        $  2,000 
3. Contingency:        $  5,000 

Total:  $39,000 
 

The above fees are the minimum needed for the project at this time.  Per the Preliminary 
Engineering Report Project Cost form submitted to DENR, the total estimated engineering fee 
allotted for the project was $96,000.  All of the proposed fees are included in the overall project 
cost and will be covered by the grant. 
 
Bids will be solicited from survey firms in the area pursuant to the NC bidding procedure for 
informal bids with the best firm for the project selected based on price, experience, time for 
completion, etc.  Once received, the City staff will make the selection with the City Manager’s 
approval of the contract and price. 
 
Based on the above, the City staff recommends the Ordinance 12-02 be approved for the amount 
of $39,000 to perform the survey work for the Water Main Replacement portion of these grant 
projects’ applications. 
 
Enclosures: 

 
1. Ordinance  12-02 
2. CAF 11-118 
3. Resolution 11-88  

 
 



 

O R D I N A N C E   12—02 
 
Council Member ** introduced the following Ordinance that was seconded by Council Member 
*** and read: 
 

FY 2011—2012 Budget Amendment # 29 
AN AMENDMENT 

TO THE WATER AND CIP WATER FUNDS 
 

 Establishing 2” Water Line Replacement Capital Project 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson on 13 June 2011 adopted the FY11-12 
Annual Operating and Capital Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is appropriate to establish a new capital project for the replacement of 2” water 

lines, said project to be initially funded in the amount of $39,000 from Water Fund and 
future sources from State grants/loan program; said amendment being more fully 
articulated in Attachment A to this Ordinance.  

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Ordinance be approved, and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 

 



 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Water Sales Revenue 30-300-433-410 2,545,800.00$      2,545,800.00$   24,000.00$       2,569,800.00$               
Transfer from 43: CIP Water 30-300-369-043 -$                     -$                   11,807.70$       11,807.70$                    

-$                     -$                   -$                  -$                              
Total 2,545,800.00$      2,545,800.00$   35,807.70$       2,581,607.70$               

2,581,607.70$               
Approved Current

Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised
Water Distribution Salaries & Wages 30-818-500-200 405,000.00$      389,500.00$    (3,192.30)$        386,307.70$                  
Non-Departmental Transfer to 43 CIP Water 850 30-660-566-043 -$                   -$                 39,000.00$       39,000.00$                    

-$                  -$                -$                  -$                              
Total 405,000.00$      389,500.00$    35,807.70$       425,307.70$                  

425,307.70$                  
Variance -$                 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

850: 2" Line Replace Transfer from Water Fund 43-850-369-030 -$                   -$                 39,000.00$       39,000.00$                    
-$                  -$                -$                  -$                              

Total -$                   -$                 39,000.00$       39,000.00$                    
39,000.00$                    

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

The following four lines have the effect of closing out the Perry Avenue Project Budget -$                               
Perry Ave Water Line Professional Services 43-824-500-400 1,161.00$          1,161.00$        (961.00)$           200.00$                         
Perry Ave Water Line Engineering 43-824-510-300 7,545.00$          7,545.00$        (580.50)$           6,964.50$                      
Perry Ave Water Line Construction 43-824-510-400 69,844.00$        69,844.00$      (10,266.20)$      59,577.80$                    
Perry Ave Water Line Transfer to Water Fund 43-824-566-030 -$                   -$                 11,807.70$       11,807.70$                    

the following three lines have the effect of creating the 2" Water Line Replacement Project Budget -$                               
2" Line Replacement Survey Work 43-850-223-020 -$                   -$                 32,000.00$       32,000.00$                    
2" Line Replacement Permit Fees 43-850-461-001 -$                   -$                 2,000.00$         2,000.00$                      
2" Line Replacement Contingency 43-850-999-010 -$                   -$                 5,000.00$         5,000.00$                      

-$                  -$                -$                  -$                              
Total 78,550.00$        78,550.00$      39,000.00$       117,550.00$                  

117,550.00$                  
Variance -$                 

39,000.00$                    
39,000.00$                    

-$                               

CAF 12-04; Ord 12-02 @ 9 Jan 12 Meeting

843: CIP WATER FUND EXPENDITURES

Council requested to approve initial proejct budget to provide for surveying funds.  Data must be 
submitted to State by 29 Feb 12 and any grant award will not be known until sometime after 31 
May 12.  Additionally, the Perry Avenue project is now completed and transferring its remaining 
balance of $11,807.70 to Water Fund allows that balance to be transferred back to this project, 
thus reducing the impact on the water fund budget itself.

Notes:

Council approved application for $3M in funding for various water & sewer projects; $6,000 to be 
used from current operating budget to provide for application expenses via McGill & Associates.  
These funds were provided in the existing operating budget and do not reflect in this Budget 
Amendment.
City advised NCDENR is considering application section for 2" line replacement which, if funds are 
awarded, will result in a $1,726M project

1 Dec 11, Letter from NCDNER

Reference:

CAF 11-118, Res 11-88 @ 22 Sep 11 Meeting

Ordinance 12-02
FY 11-12 Budget Amendment # 29

Establishing Capital Project 43--850:  2" Water Line Replacement

30: WATER FUND REVENUES

30--Water Fund & 43--CIP Water Fund

843: CIP WATER FUND REVENUES

Net Amendment to 43 CIP Water 850: 2" Water Line Replacement
Variance

Net Amendment to Water Fund

FUNDS:

30: WATER FUND EXPENDITURES

 
 
The foregoing Ordinance 12-02, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was **** on this the 9th  day of January 2012:  YES:  . NO:  .   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   .             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 



 

Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p.**; CAF 12-04;  
___________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA - CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-04 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 9 January 2012. This Ordinance is recorded in 
Ordinance Book 8, p.***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ****. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 

 
 

Attachment A 
Ordinance 12-02 

FY 11-12 Budget Ordinance Amendment # 29 
 
This budget ordinance amendment has the effect of accomplishing two things.  First, it closes out 
the Perry Avenue 2” Water Line Replacement Project and second, it establishes a new capital 
project entitled 2” Water Line Replacement Project.  The former project is now complete and 
reversions of $11,807.70 can be returned to the Water Fund and reprogrammed to help fund a 
portion of the $39,000 needed for survey and administrative work necessary to complete work 
for plans for the 2” line replacement grant/loan application under review by NCDNER.  If 
grant/loan funding is approved, the City will receive up to $1,726,000 for the replacement of 
13,000+ lf of 2” water line. 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by: _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
             Judith Woods, Accounting Supervisor 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager  
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

22 September 2011 
 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF:  11—118 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 11—88, Authorizing Approval of 
Grant/Loan Applications to NC Drinking Water State Revolving Fund for Various 
Water System Improvements. 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 5 – Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 

Systems. 
 KSO 8   –   Provide Sufficient Funding for Municipal Services. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 11—88, authorizing Approval of Grant/Loan Applications to NC 

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund for Various Water System Improvements. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The City of Henderson has been notified by the NC Department of Environment and Natural 
Resources (DENR) of a grant/loan opportunity that is available for all water systems in North 
Carolina to obtain funds to help with maintenance, expansions, and replacements of parts, lines, 
and equipment for local water systems. Overall, $24,305,000 is allotted for North Carolina with 
funding for various categories of projects. This matter was brought to the attention of the Council 
at its 22 August 11 Work Session and the need to apply for the loan/grant money on various 
projects as described below: 
 

1. 2” Galvanized Watermain Replacement: The City has been working diligently on 
modifying, replacing, and updating the various 2” galvanized watermains throughout the 
City.  Based on review by City Staff, over 13,000 LF 2” galvanized watermains are 
proposed to be replaced and approximately 200 service connections to be updated and 
moved from existing 2” watermains to existing larger sized lines already in service. 

2. Watermeter Purchase and Replacement:  The City Council has approved and budgeted 
$100,000 for FY 12 and has allotted funds in the past to continually update and replace 
old meters within the City.  The City currently has over 8,000 connections and slightly 
over 2,000 newer meters installed (radio read type meters).  Additional funding will 
allow the City to make a large purchase of new water meters to be installed with current 
staff through several years. 
 



 

3. High Speed Pump Replacement: Kerr Lake Regional Water Plant needs to replace its 
high speed pump within the plant.   

 
All three grant categories will be filed with the State via separate applications which are in the 
process of being completed.  The estimated cost for all projects is approximately $3.0 million.  
 
It is anticipated that an award that might be received would be in the form of a combination grant 
and loan.  Consequently, at this time, it is not known what the budgetary impacts will be.  Once 
award decisions are announced by DENR, City Administration will analyze impacts and report 
to Council with recommendations. 
 
Approval of Resolution 11—88 authorizes the filing of applications for grant/loan funding.  
Once grant/loan announcements are made, Council will have the opportunity to consider 
accepting the grants/loans. 
 
Due to the time constraints and the amount of information needed to submit for the application, 
McGill & Associates was approached and are currently working with the City Staff to prepare 
and submit the applications to the State, upon Council’s approval. The estimated budget for the 
firms services is up to and not to exceed $6,000.  Funding was available in the current year’s 
budget. 
 
The City Administration recommends approval of the Resolution authorizing the submission of 
applications to the State for the various water system improvements. 
 
Enclosures: 

4. Resolution  11—88 
5. 22 Aug 11 Work Session Minutes 

 
 



 

 



 

 



 
 
 
 
 

 
_________________________ 

   
03 January 2012 

 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-06 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-03, Amending City Code Section 29-14 
(8) Relating to Parks and Recreations Requiring Posting of Recreation Facilities 
Before Prohibiting Weapons 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 12-03, Amending City Code Section 29-14 (8) Relating to Parks and 

Recreations Requiring Posting of Recreation Facilities Before Prohibiting Weapons 
 

 
Executive Summary 
 
The General Assembly’s approval of HB 650 now requires localities to “post” their properties on 
which they wish to prohibit concealed weapons.  At the 12 September 2011 City Attorney 
Zollicoffer prepared Ordinance 11-57 amending City Code Section 10-49 to include the word 
“post” to align our City Code with State Law. 
 
At that time, City Code Section 29-14 (8) was overlooked. City Attorney Zollicoffer is now 
recommending a minor amendment to City Code Section 29-14 (8) to bring the City Code into 
alignment with State law.  Ordinance 12-03 has the effect of amending City Code 29-14(8) to 
accomplish this alignment. 
 
Enclosures: 
 

1. Ordinance 12-03 
2. City Code Section 29-14 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 09 Jan 2012 Regular Meeting 
 



ORDINANCE  12-03 
 
 
Council Member ___________________________ introduced the following Ordinance which 
was seconded by Council Member ______________________ and read: 
 

AN ORDINANCE REQUIRING POSTING OF RECREATION  
FACILITIES BEFORE PROHIBITING WEAPONS  

 
The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 

 
Section 1.  That Section 29-14(8) be rewritten to read as follows:  
 
 “(8)   

No weapons shall be permitted on the premises of posted recreational facilities 
of the City.”  

 
Section 2.  The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage. 
 

The foregoing Ordinance 12-03, upon motion of Council member ____________ and 
seconded by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call 
vote and received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the ____ 
day of _______________, 2012:     YES:        . NO:      .  ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. **. 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
 
 



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-03, An 
Ordinance Requiring Posting Of Recreation Facilities Before Prohibiting Weapons, adopted by 
the Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on **  ** 2012 (See Minute Book 4*, p. **.).  
This Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book # 8, pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  *** 2012. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 

  



 



 
 
 
 

 
 

4 January 2012 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-07 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-04, FY12 Budget Amendment #30 for 
the Reimbursement of Funds Through Insurance Proceeds as a Result of Water 
Main Damage and Repair at Andrews Avenue and US #1 Bypass. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 5: Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 

System. 
 

 KSO 8:   Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to 
Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities.  

 
Recommendation:             
 
 Approval of Ordinance 12-04, FY12 Budget Amendment #30 for the Reimbursement of 

Funds Through Insurance Proceeds as a Result of Water Main Damage and Repair at 
Andrews Avenue and US #1 Bypass. 

 
Executive Summary 
 
On November 21, 2011 a truck and trailer carrying heavy equipment along US#1 Bypass at 
Andrews Avenue, struck the City’s water main suspended under the bridge. According to the 
police report, the equipment was over the height restrictions. As a result of this accident, the City 
incurred costs in overtime, loss of water, and contractual cost to repair the main in a timely 
manner. H.G. Reynolds was hired to perform the repair in conjunction with City crews. The total 
cost incurred was $12,084.46. A check has been received from the insurance company for the 
total amount. Ordinance 12-04, FY12 Budget Amendment #30, accounts for the revenue and the 
appropriate accounts to which the money should be allocated. 
 
Enclosures:  

1. Ordinance 12-04                     

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 9 Jan 12 Regular Meeting 
 



O R D I N A N C E   12—04 
 
Council Member ** introduced the following Ordinance that was seconded by Council Member 
*** and read: 
 

FY 2011—2012 Budget Amendment # 30 
AN AMENDMENT 

TO THE WATER AND SEWER FUNDS 
 

 Insurance  Reimbursement 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson on 13 June 2011 adopted the FY11-12 
Annual Operating and Capital Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, An accident occurred on Rt. 1 at the East Andrews Ave. Bridge causing damage to 

the water line, water loss and materials and costs in salaries and wages; and 
 
WHEREAS, a claim was filed by the City and reimbursement in the amount of $12,084.46 has 

been received and needs to be appropriated to the affected line items in both the Water 
and Sewer funds, as more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Ordinance; and 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Ordinance be approved, and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 

 



Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Insurance Claims 30-300-386-000 -$                 -$                   11,117.46$       11,117.46$                    
-$                -$                  -$                  -$                              

Total -$                 -$                   11,117.46$       11,117.46$                    
11,117.46$                    

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Water Distribution Overtime 30-818-500-800 10,500.00$       10,500.00$         952.00$            11,452.00$                    
Water Distribution Contracted Services 30-818-504-500 56,770.00$       56,770.00$         6,490.00$         63,260.00$                    
Water Distribution Water Main Materials 30-818-535-700 75,000.00$       75,000.00$         2,863.00$         77,863.00$                    
Water Distribution Purchase for Resale 30-818-504-800 2,554,800.00$  2,554,800.00$    812.46$            2,555,612.46$               

-$                -$                  -$                  -$                              
Total 2,697,070.00$  2,697,070.00$    11,117.46$       2,708,187.46$               

2,708,187.46$               
Variance -$                 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Insurance Claims 31-310-386-000 -$                 -$                   967.00$            967.00$                         
-$                -$                  -$                  -$                              

Total -$                 -$                   967.00$            967.00$                         
967.00$                         

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Sewer Collection Overtime 31-828-500-800 6,500.00$         6,500.00$           453.00$            6,953.00$                      
Sewer I & I Overtime 31-829-500-800 3,500.00$         3,500.00$           514.00$            4,014.00$                      

-$                -$                  -$                  -$                              
Total 10,000.00$       10,000.00$         967.00$            10,967.00$                    

10,967.00$                    
Variance -$                 

11,117.46$                    
967.00$                         

12,084.46$                    
12,084.46$                    

-$                               Variance
Notes:
Reimbuirsement to the City for insurance claim against carrier that ran into the East Andrews Bridge 
over US Rt. 1 Bypass, thus causing damage to pipe, lost water and overtime expenses.  
Reimbursement of $12,084.46 has been received and allocated to affected line items in order to 
restore budget levels prior to the water line break.

Reference:
CAF 12-07, Ord 12-04 at 9 Jan 12 Meeting

Ordinance 12-04
FY 11-12 Budget Amendment # 30

30 WATER FUND REVENUES

30: Water Fund & 31: Sewer Fund

31 SEWER FUND REVENUES

Distribution to Sewer Fund
Total Distribution to Water and Sewer funds

Total Insurance Proceeds

Distribution to Water Fund

31 SEWER FUND EXPENDITURES

FUNDS:

30 WATER  FUND EXPENDITURES

 
 
The foregoing Ordinance 12-04, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was **** on this the 9th  day of January 2012:  YES:  . NO:  .   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   .             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p.**; CAF 12-07; Ord 12-04 
 
 
 
 
 



____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA - CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-04 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 9 January 2012. This Ordinance is recorded in 
Ordinance Book 8, p.***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ****. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 

 
 

Attachment A 
Ordinance 12-04 

FY 11-12 Budget Ordinance Amendment #30 
 
This Budget Ordinance Amendment provides for reimbursement for contracted services, 
overtime, materials and lost water expenses in the Public Services Department—Water and 
Sewer budget codes in total amount of $12,084.46.  The budget ordinance appropriates the 
reimbursement to affected line items. 
 
  Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by: _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
             Judith Woods, Accounting Supervisor 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager  
 



 



 



 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 
5 January 2012 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12—08 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-05, FY 12 Budget Amendment #31, 
Authorizing Transfer of Funds For Professional Services for Water Sales 
Agreement 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 5: Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 

System. 
 

 KSO 8:   Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to 
Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities.  

 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 12-05, FY 12 Budget Amendment #31, Authorizing Transfer of 

Funds For Professional Services for Water Sales Agreement 
 
Executive Summary 
 
Expenses for legal services to work with Council and staff in contract development, negotiations 
and consultation for water sales discussions with Oxford, Vance County and Granville County 
were not expected to the extent that have occurred during the first half of the fiscal year.  A 
transfer of funds within the Water and Sewer funds is necessary to cover incurred expenses.  The 
transfer is recommended from each of the funds’ contingency accounts.  Only Council may 
appropriate from the operating funds’ contingency accounts. 
 
Enclosures:  

1. Ordinance 12-05 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

           
 
 
 
Agenda Item:         ___________ 
 
Council Meeting:  09 Jan 2012 Regular Meeting 



 

O R D I N A N C E   12—05 
 
Council Member ** introduced the following Ordinance that was seconded by Council Member 
*** and read: 
 

FY 2011—2012 Budget Amendment # 31 
AN AMENDMENT 

TO THE WATER AND SEWER FUNDS 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson on 13 June 2011 adopted the FY11-12 

Annual Operating and Capital Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the operating budgets from time-to-time in order to keep 

them in balance; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to adjust the water and sewer funds’ budgets to provide for 

professional services as it relates to water and sewer utility sales,  said amendment being 
more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Ordinance; and 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Ordinance be approved, and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 

 



 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

-$               -$                 -$                               
-$              -$                -$                  -$                              

Total -$               -$                 -$                  -$                               
-$                               

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Water Distribution Professional Services-Legal 30-818-223-030 -$               -$                 6,500.00$         6,500.00$                      
Water Distribution Prof Services 30-818-500-400 4,000.00$      4,000.00$        2,000.00$         6,000.00$                      
Water Distribution contingency 30-818-509-900 28,391.00$    28,391.00$      (8,500.00)$        19,891.00$                    

-$              -$                -$                  -$                              
Total 32,391.00$    32,391.00$      -$                  32,391.00$                    

32,391.00$                    
Variance -$                 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

-$               -$                 -$                  -$                               
-$              -$                -$                  -$                              

Total -$               -$                 -$                  -$                               
-$                               

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Sewer Collection contingency 31-828-509-900 52,653.00$    52,653.00$      (6,500.00)$        46,153.00$                    
Sewer Collection Professional Services-Legal 31-828-223-030 -$               -$                 6,500.00$         6,500.00$                      

-$              -$                -$                  -$                              
Total 52,653.00$    52,653.00$      -$                  52,653.00$                    

52,653.00$                    
Variance -$                 

Notes:

Funds were not budgeted for the City Attorney to provide services for consultation, contract 
negotiation and/or document development for water sales negotiations with Oxford, Vance and 
Granville counties.  Transfer of funds from water and sewer funds' contingency accounts are the 
only logical sources from which to pay for these services.  Only Council may appropriate from an 
operating fund's contingency account.  This amendment will cover expenses to date.  
Additionally, a $2,000 transfer is requested for general professional services to cover an 
expected shortage in that line item.

Reference:

CAF 12-08, Ord 12-05 at 9 Jan 12 Meeting

Ordinance 12--05
FY 11-12 Budget Amendment # 31

30: WATER FUND REVENUES

30: Water Fund & 31: Sewer Fund

31: SEWER FUND REVENUES

31: SEWER FUND EXPENDITURES

FUNDS:

30: WATER FUND EXPENDITURES

 
 
The foregoing Ordinance 12-05, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was **** on this the 9th  day of January 2012:  YES:  . NO:  .   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   .             
 
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p.**; CAF 12-08;  
 
 
 
 



 

___________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA - CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-05 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 9 January 2012. This Ordinance is recorded in 
Ordinance Book 8, p.***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ****. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 

 
 

Attachment A 
Ordinance 12-05 

FY 11-12 Budget Ordinance Amendment #31 
 
An exceptional amount of work was performed by the City Attorney during the past six months 
on matters of water sales to Oxford, Vance County and Granville County.  These expenses 
exceeded normal budgetary expectations since these particular items were not anticipated during 
budget development.  This transfer catches up expenses to-date as well as provides for an 
additional allocation to general professional services in the water fund.  The transfers to cover 
these expenses are recommended to come from contingency accounts, thus requiring Council 
approval.. 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by: _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
             Judith Woods, Accounting Supervisor 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager  
 

 



Ordinance Book 8 
Ordinance 12-01, Page 1 of 3 

Originally Presented to Council 12 Dec 2011 as Ordinance 11-70 
 

ORDINANCE  12-01   
 
Council Member ___________________________ introduced the following Ordinance which 
was seconded by Council Member ______________________ and read: 
 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR APPEAL RIGHTS RE 
THE FIRE PREVENTION CODE  

 
The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 

 
Section 1.  That Section 12-1 of the City Code is hereby rewritten to read as follows: 
 

“Sec. 12-1.  Fire Prevention Code adopted. 
 
(a) There is hereby adopted by the city council, for the purpose of prescribing 

regulations governing conditions hazardous to life and property from fire or 
explosion, that certain code known as the (National) Fire Prevention Code 
prepared by the National Fire Protection Association (and sometimes referred to 
as NFPA Volume 1, 2012 edition), as the same may be amended, supplemented or 
substituted from time to time, except insofar as inconsistent with the laws of the 
state and other ordinances of the city, which code has been filed in the office of 
the city fire chief and the same is hereby adopted and incorporated as fully as if 
set out at length herein; provided, that:   

 
(1) Wherever the word “municipality” is used in said (National) Fire 

Prevention Code, hereby adopted, it shall be held to mean the City of 
Henderson, North Carolina. 

(2) Wherever the term “corporation counsel” is used in said (National) Fire 
Prevention Code, hereby adopted, it shall be held to mean the city 
attorney for the city. 

(3) The limits referred to in said (National) Fire Prevention Code, in which 
the storage of explosives and blasting agents is prohibited, shall be 
fixed by the city council or by the North Carolina Fire Prevention 
Code. 

(4) The limits referred to in said (National) Fire Prevention Code, in which 
storage of flammable liquids in outside aboveground tanks is prohibited 
shall be fixed by the city council or by the North Carolina Fire 
Prevention Code. 

(5) The limits referred to in said (National) Fire Prevention Code, in which 
new bulk plants for flammable liquids are prohibited shall be fixed by 
the city council or by the North Carolina Fire Prevention Code. 

 New 
(b) The applicable North Carolina (State Building Code) Fire Prevention Code, and 

cumulative supplements thereto, as amended from time to time and as adopted 
and published through the North Carolina Department of Insurance, is hereby also 



Ordinance Book 8 
Ordinance 12-01, Page 2 of 3 

Originally Presented to Council 12 Dec 2011 as Ordinance 11-70 
 

adopted by reference (as though fully set forth herein) as the Fire Prevention  
Code of the city. 

 
(c) Owner/occupant responsibility.  Correction and abatement of violations of this 

Code shall be the responsibility of the owner (unless a current written lease [then 
provided to the Fire Code Official] specifically places the burden of said 
correction on the Tenant).  If an occupant creates, or allows to be created, 
hazardous conditions in violation of this Code, the occupant shall be held 
responsible for the abatement of such hazardous conditions. 

 
(d) Board of Appeals established.  In order to hear and decide appeals of orders, 

decisions or determinations made by the Fire Code Official relative to the 
application and interpretation of this Code, there shall be and is hereby created a 
Board of Appeals.  The Board of Appeals shall consist of three members 
appointed by the City Council and shall hold office at the pleasure of the City 
Council.  The Fire Code Official shall be an ex officio member of said Board but 
shall not sit with it on any appeal and shall have no vote on any matter before the 
Board.  Appeals shall be filed in writing with the City Clerk by the aggrieved 
party within 10 days of the date of the citation issued for any alleged violation, 
setting forth the specific reason for the appeal.  The Board shall render all 
decisions and findings in writing to the appellant with a duplicate copy to the Fire 
Code Official. 
 

(1) Qualifications of Board Members.  The Board of Appeals shall consist 
of members who are qualified by experience and training to pass on 
matters pertaining to hazards of fire, explosions, hazardous conditions 
or fire protection systems and cannot be regular employees of the City. 

 
(2) Limitations on Authority.  An application for appeal shall be based 

only on a claim that the intent of this Code or the rules legally adopted 
hereunder have been incorrectly interpreted, the provisions of this Code 
do not fully apply, or an equivalent method of protection or safety is 
proposed.  The Board shall have no authority to waive requirements of 
this Code.   

 
(3) Procedure.  The Board shall elect a chairman from among its members.  

Any two members of the Board shall constitute a quorum and any 
decision shall be rendered by a majority of the members sitting.  All 
witnesses shall be sworn, but the Board shall not be bound by any strict 
rules of evidence.  After hearing the evidence, and subject to the 
limitations hereinbefore set forth, the Board may affirm, modify, or 
reverse the matter appealed from, in whole or in part.  If a majority of 
the quorum cannot agree on a decision, the decision of the Fire Code 
Official shall be upheld and affirmed. 

 



Ordinance Book 8 
Ordinance 12-01, Page 3 of 3 

Originally Presented to Council 12 Dec 2011 as Ordinance 11-70 
 

(e) For violations of the North Carolina Fire Prevention Code, the Fire Code Official 
may, in addition to the remedies set forth therein, institute any appropriate action 
or proceeding, including civil penalties, as set forth in N.C.G.S. §160A-175 (that 
are hereby adopted by the City of Henderson) or elsewhere in the City Code.” 
 

Section 2.  That the phrase “are each herein designated as a “Fire Code Officer and each is” to be 
inserted in lieu of the word “are” immediately following the words “above officers)” as the same 
appears in Section 12-3 of the City Code. 
 
Section 3.  The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage. 
 

The foregoing Ordinance 11—70, upon motion of Council member ____________ and seconded 
by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and 
received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the ____ day of 
_______________, 2011:     YES:        . NO:      .  ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. **. 
_______________________________________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 11—70, An 
Ordinance Providing For Appeal Rights Re The Fire Prevention Code, adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on **  ** 2011 (See Minute Book 4*, p. **.).  This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book # 8, pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  *** 2011. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 



Originally presented to Council on 12 Dec 2011 
as CAF 11-143 and Ordinance 11-70 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

28 December 2011 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-02 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-01, Amending City Code Section 12-1, 
Providing for Appeal Rights Regarding the Fire Prevention Code. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 2:  Reduce Crime and Provide for a Safe Community. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 12-01, Amending the City Code Section 12-1, Providing for Appeal 

Rights Regarding the Fire Prevention Code. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Fire Department respectfully requests the City Council’s approval to amend “Section 12-1. 
Fire Prevention Code”. The amendments are in line with the latest edition of the National Fire 
Protection Code 2012, prepared by the National Fire Protection Association (sometimes referred 
to as NFPA Volume 1, 2012 edition).  They provide for Owner/Occupant responsibilities and the 
establishment of an Appeals Board to hear and decide appeals of orders. These amendments will 
enable the City’s fire inspectors to carry out their fire inspection duties more efficiently.  
 
Enclosure: 
 

1.  Ordinance 12-01  

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 09 Jan 12 Regular Meeting 
 



Ordinance Book 8 
Ordinance 12-01, Page 2 of 4 

 

ORDINANCE  12-01   
 
Council Member ___________________________ introduced the following Ordinance which 
was seconded by Council Member ______________________ and read: 
 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR APPEAL RIGHTS RE 
THE FIRE PREVENTION CODE  

 
The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 

 
Section 1.  That Section 12-1 of the City Code is hereby rewritten to read as follows: 
 

“Sec. 12-1.  Fire Prevention Code adopted. 
 
(a) There is hereby adopted by the city council, for the purpose of prescribing 

regulations governing conditions hazardous to life and property from fire or 
explosion, that certain code known as the (National) Fire Prevention Code 
prepared by the National Fire Protection Association (and sometimes referred to 
as NFPA Volume 1, 2012 edition), as the same may be amended, supplemented or 
substituted from time to time, except insofar as inconsistent with the laws of the 
state and other ordinances of the city, which code has been filed in the office of 
the city fire chief and the same is hereby adopted and incorporated as fully as if 
set out at length herein; provided, that:   

 
(1) Wherever the word “municipality” is used in said (National) Fire 

Prevention Code, hereby adopted, it shall be held to mean the City of 
Henderson, North Carolina. 

(2) Wherever the term “corporation counsel” is used in said (National) Fire 
Prevention Code, hereby adopted, it shall be held to mean the city 
attorney for the city. 

(3) The limits referred to in said (National) Fire Prevention Code, in which 
the storage of explosives and blasting agents is prohibited, shall be 
fixed by the city council or by the North Carolina Fire Prevention 
Code. 

(4) The limits referred to in said (National) Fire Prevention Code, in which 
storage of flammable liquids in outside aboveground tanks is prohibited 
shall be fixed by the city council or by the North Carolina Fire 
Prevention Code. 

(5) The limits referred to in said (National) Fire Prevention Code, in which 
new bulk plants for flammable liquids are prohibited shall be fixed by 
the city council or by the North Carolina Fire Prevention Code. 

 New 
(b) The applicable North Carolina (State Building Code) Fire Prevention Code, and 

cumulative supplements thereto, as amended from time to time and as adopted 
and published through the North Carolina Department of Insurance, is hereby also 



Ordinance Book 8 
Ordinance 12-01, Page 3 of 4 

 

adopted by reference (as though fully set forth herein) as the Fire Prevention  
Code of the city. 

 
(c) Owner/occupant responsibility.  Correction and abatement of violations of this 

Code shall be the responsibility of the owner (unless a current written lease [then 
provided to the Fire Code Official] specifically places the burden of said 
correction on the Tenant).  If an occupant creates, or allows to be created, 
hazardous conditions in violation of this Code, the occupant shall be held 
responsible for the abatement of such hazardous conditions. 

 
(d) Board of Appeals established.  In order to hear and decide appeals of orders, 

decisions or determinations made by the Fire Code Official relative to the 
application and interpretation of this Code, there shall be and is hereby created a 
Board of Appeals.  The Board of Appeals shall consist of three members 
appointed by the City Council and shall hold office at the pleasure of the City 
Council.  The Fire Code Official shall be an ex officio member of said Board but 
shall not sit with it on any appeal and shall have no vote on any matter before the 
Board.  Appeals shall be filed in writing with the City Clerk by the aggrieved 
party within 10 days of the date of the citation issued for any alleged violation, 
setting forth the specific reason for the appeal.  The Board shall render all 
decisions and findings in writing to the appellant with a duplicate copy to the Fire 
Code Official. 
 

(1) Qualifications of Board Members.  The Board of Appeals shall consist 
of members who are qualified by experience and training to pass on 
matters pertaining to hazards of fire, explosions, hazardous conditions 
or fire protection systems and cannot be regular employees of the City. 

 
(2) Limitations on Authority.  An application for appeal shall be based 

only on a claim that the intent of this Code or the rules legally adopted 
hereunder have been incorrectly interpreted, the provisions of this Code 
do not fully apply, or an equivalent method of protection or safety is 
proposed.  The Board shall have no authority to waive requirements of 
this Code.   

 
(3) Procedure.  The Board shall elect a chairman from among its members.  

Any two members of the Board shall constitute a quorum and any 
decision shall be rendered by a majority of the members sitting.  All 
witnesses shall be sworn, but the Board shall not be bound by any strict 
rules of evidence.  After hearing the evidence, and subject to the 
limitations hereinbefore set forth, the Board may affirm, modify, or 
reverse the matter appealed from, in whole or in part.  If a majority of 
the quorum cannot agree on a decision, the decision of the Fire Code 
Official shall be upheld and affirmed. 

 



Ordinance Book 8 
Ordinance 12-01, Page 4 of 4 

 

(e) For violations of the North Carolina Fire Prevention Code, the Fire Code Official 
may, in addition to the remedies set forth therein, institute any appropriate action 
or proceeding, including civil penalties, as set forth in N.C.G.S. §160A-175 (that 
are hereby adopted by the City of Henderson) or elsewhere in the City Code.” 
 

Section 2.  That the phrase “are each herein designated as a “Fire Code Officer and each is” to be 
inserted in lieu of the word “are” immediately following the words “above officers)” as the same 
appears in Section 12-3 of the City Code. 
 
Section 3.  The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage. 
 

The foregoing Ordinance 12-01, upon motion of Council member ____________ and seconded 
by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and 
received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the ____ day of 
_______________, 2012:     YES:        . NO:      .  ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. **. 
_______________________________________ 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-01, An 
Ordinance Providing For Appeal Rights Re The Fire Prevention Code, adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on **  ** 2012 (See Minute Book 4*, p. **.).  This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book # 8, pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  *** 2012. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 



Originally Presented to Council 12 Dec 2011 
As CAF 11-147 and Res 11-112 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

28 December 2011 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor Pete O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-03  

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-02, Adopting the KLRWS 2007 Local 
Water Supply Plan. 
 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item:  
 
 KSO-5: Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 12-02, Adopting the KLRWS 2007 Local Water Supply Plan. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
Kerr Lake Regional Water System is required by the State of North Carolina to update and have 
State approval of their Local Water Supply Plan every five years. In order for the KLRWS to be 
compliant with the requirements of NCGS §143-355(l), the governing body for the system must 
approve a resolution to adopt the plan. Because of the backlog at the State level, the review and 
approval letter from NCDENR for the 2007 Local Water Supply Plan was not received until 
November 2, 2011. 
 
Enclosures 
 

1. Resolution 12-02  
2. NCDENR Approval Letter  

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 9 Jan 12 Regular Meeting 
 



Originally Presented to Council 12 Dec 2011 
As CAF 11-147 and Res 11-112 

 

R E S O L U T I O N  12-02  
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ADOPTION  
OF KLRWS 2007 LOCAL WATER SUPPLY PLAN 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 

(KSO) at its 2011 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one of the Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 5:  

To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmental Compliant Infrastructure Systems; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute §143-355(l) requires that each unit of local 

government that provides public water services or plans to provide such services shall 
either individually or together with other such units of local government, prepare an 
submit a Local Water Supply Plan; and  

 
WHEREAS, as required by the statute and in the interest of sound local planning, a Local Water 

Supply Plan for Kerr Lake Regional Water System, has been developed and submitted to 
the Henderson City Council for approval; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council finds that the Local Water Supply Plan, which is more 

fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution, is in accordance with the provisions 
of North Carolina General Statute §143-355(l) and that it will provide the appropriate 
guidance for the future management of water supplies for Kerr Lake Regional Water 
System, as well as useful information to the Department of Environment and Natural 
Resources for the development of a state water supply plan as required by statute. 

 
NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT 

IT DOES HEREBY approve the 2007 Local Water Supply Plan. 
  
The foregoing Resolution 12-02, introduced by Council Member *** and seconded by Council 
Member *** on this the ** day of *** 2012 and having been submitted to a roll call vote, was 
*** by the following votes:  YES:  NO:  ABSTAIN:  ABSENT:       
    

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
_______________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, pp. ***. 



Originally Presented to Council 12 Dec 2011 
As CAF 11-147 and Res 11-112 

 

 

Resolution 12-02 
        Attachment A 



Originally Presented to Council 12 Dec 2011 
As CAF 11-147 and Res 11-112 

 

 



Originally Presented to Council 12 Dec 2011 
As CAF 11-147 and Res 11-112 

 

 



Originally Presented to Council 12 Dec 2011 
As CAF 11-147 and Res 11-112 

 

 



Originally Presented to Council 12 Dec 2011 
As CAF 11-147 and Res 11-112 

 

 



Originally Presented to Council 12 Dec 2011 
As CAF 11-147 and Res 11-112 

 

 

CAF 12-03 
Attachment #2 



  

 
 
              Last Updated: 1/6/2012 12:00 PM 

Date Time Event Location 

Jan 16th 
 

Martin Luther King’s Birthday 
City Hall will be Closed  

Jan 19th 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers

Jan 23rd 6:00 PM City Council Meeting & Work Session City Council Chambers

Jan 27th 10:00 AM Henderson-Vance 911 Advisory Board 
Emergency Operations

Center 

Feb 1st 8:00 AM Clean Up Henderson Operations Center 

Feb 6th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers

Feb 7th 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Board of Adjustment City Council Chambers

Feb 13th 6:00 PM Regular City Council Meeting City Council Chambers

Feb 14th 3:00 PM Henderson Community Appearance Committee City Council Chambers

Feb 16th 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers

Feb 27th 6:00 PM City Council Meeting & Work Session City Council Chambers

Mar  5th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers

Mar 6th 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Board of Adjustment City Council Chambers

Mar 7th 8:00 AM Clean Up Henderson Operations Center 

Mar 12th 5:00 PM 
H. Leslie Perry Memorial Library 

Board of Trustees 
Library 

Mar 12th 6:00 PM Regular City Council Meeting City Council Chambers

Mar 13th 3:00 PM Henderson Appearance Committee City Council Chambers

Mar 15th 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers

Mar 26th 6:00 PM City Council Meeting & Work Session City Council Chambers

Mar 30th 10:00 AM Henderson-Vance 911 Advisory Board 
Emergency Operations

Center 

Apr 2nd 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers

Apr 3rd 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Board of Adjustment City Council Chambers

Apr 9th 6:00 PM Regular City Council Meeting City Council Chambers

Apr 10th 3:00 PM Henderson Appearance Committee City Council Chambers

Meetings and Events Calendar 












































	#1 RM 9 Jan 2012
	#40 9 Dec Special Meeting
	CAF 12-04 DWSRF Water Main Replacement Design O 12-02
	CAF 12-06 Posting No  Concealed Weapons on Recreational Facilities O 12-03
	CAF 12-07 Water main repair reimbursement O 12-04 BA # 30
	CAF 12-08 approve ord 11-04, bud amend 31 re legal services for water sales contracts
	ORD 12-01 REWRITING SEC 12-1 - FIRE CODE
	CAF 12-02, ORD 12-01  Amending City Fire Code
	CAF 12-03  R 12-02 2007 Local Water Supply Plan Adoption B
	REFERENCE Meetings and Event
	#12 911 Dec 2011 Report
	#12 HFD Dec 2011 Report

